
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Harriet Speight 
Governance and Scrutiny Support 
Telephone: 0113 37 89954 
 

 
 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 

 

 

 

CLIMATE EMERGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held REMOTELY on 
Tuesday, 22nd September, 2020 

at 3.30 pm 
 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Anderson 

J Bentley 
D Blackburn 
N Buckley 
P Carlill 

A Garthwaite 
J Illingworth 
M Midgley 
L Mulherin 
M Shahzad 

P Wadsworth 
N Walshaw (Chair) 

P Wray 
 
 
 
 
Note to observers of the meeting:     
 
To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the ‘View the Meeting Recording’ link 
which will feature on the meeting’s webpage (linked below) ahead of the meeting. The 
webcast will become available at the commencement of the meeting. 
 
 
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1133&MId=10117&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack

https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1133&MId=10117&Ver=4


 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

1) To highlight reports or appendices which 
officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2) To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3) If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following parts of the agenda designated as 
containing exempt information on the grounds that 
it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 
 

 



 

 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
AND OTHER INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2000 and paragraphs 13-18 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. Also to declare 
any other significant interests which the Member 
wishes to declare in the public interest, in 
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence from the 
meeting. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the meeting 
held on 17th July 2020. 
 

7 - 10 

7   
 

  OPEN FORUM 
 
At the discretion of the Chair, a period of up to 15 
minutes may be allocated at each ordinary meeting 
for members of the public to make representations 
or to ask questions on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Committee.  No member of the 
public shall speak for more than five minutes in the 
Open Forum, except by permission of the Chair. 
  
Please note: Members of the public are asked to 
submit a video of their question or statement to 
climate.emergency@leeds.gov.uk by 12 p.m. on 
Wednesday 16th September 2020. 
 

 

mailto:climate.emergency@leeds.gov.uk


 

 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

8   
 

  WORKING GROUPS UPDATE 
 
To receive a verbal update on the progress of the 
Committees’ working groups to date. 
 

 

9   
 

  CLIMATE ACTION FUND - COMMUNITY 
PROJECTS IN LEEDS 
 
To consider the report of the Head of Democratic 
Services that introduces a presentation to be 
delivered by representatives from a partnership of 
local organisations who have been successful in 
their bid for funding from the £2.5m National 
Lottery Climate Action Fund. 
 

11 - 
12 

10   
 

  SUSTAINABLE FOOD SYSTEMS 
 
To consider the report of the Head of Democratic 
Services that introduces a presentation to be 
delivered by representatives from UKRI and the 
Global Food and Environment Institute setting out 
the action to be taken to develop a climate resilient 
food system in Leeds that promotes health, 
sustainability and food security. 
 

13 - 
14 

11   
 

  RESPONSE TO THE CITIZENS' JURY'S 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To consider the report of the Director of Resources 
and Housing that provides a formal response to the 
Citizens’ Jury’s recommendations from the 
Council’s perspective. 
 
(Report to follow) 
 

 

12   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting will take place on Thursday 22nd 
October 2020 at 10:30 a.m. 
 

 

 
Third Party Recording  
 
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the proceedings either as they take place (or later) and 
to enable the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the front of this 
agenda. 
 
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice 
 

a) Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and where the recording was made, the context of 
the discussion that took place, and a clear identification of the main speakers and their role or title. 

b) Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the 
proceedings or comments made by attendees.  In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between those points must be complete. 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd September, 2020 

 

Climate Emergency Advisory Committee 
 

Friday, 17th July, 2020 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor N Walshaw in the Chair 

 Councillors B Anderson, J Bentley, 
D Blackburn, N Buckley, A Garthwaite, 
J Illingworth, M Midgley, L Mulherin, 
M Shahzad, P Wadsworth and P Wray 

 
 

 
 
In his opening remarks, the Chair welcomed Councillor P Carlill as a new Member of 
the Committee as approved at the Council meeting on 15th July 2020, replacing 
Councillor K Groves due to her commitments at the West Yorkshire Combined 
Authority. 
 
1 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents  
 
There were no appeals. 
 
2 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
There were no exempt items. 
 
3 Late Items  
 
There were no late items. 
 
4 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests. 
 
5 Apologies for Absence  
 
There were no apologies received. 
 
6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2020 be approved 
as a correct record. 
 
7 Open Forum  
 
Members of the public were asked to submit a video recording of their open forum 
submission in advance of the meeting.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd September, 2020 

 

A video was submitted by Our Future Leeds, which can be viewed here. The Chair 
read out a brief introduction to the video, which sets out the 10 ideas for how to 
create a sustainable, liveable, safe and socially just Leeds by 2030.  
 
The ten ideas are: 
 
1.    Changing our roads 
2.    15 minute neighbourhoods 
3.    A network of community hubs 
4.    More local greenspaces 
5.    Warm affordable homes for all 
6.    Neighbourhood assemblies 
7.    Security for Leeds workers 
8.    A Leeds COVID Recovery fund 
9.    A socially useful economy 
10.  Measuring what matters 
 
More information on the 10 ideas as set out in the video can be found here.  
 
8 Working Groups Update  
The Chief Officer for Sustainable Energy and Air Quality, Polly Cook, provided an 
update to Members on the progress of the working groups to the Committee as 
follows: 
 
Transport – The working group has held one remote meeting, focused on the active 
transport schemes that had been introduced as a result of COVID-19, as well as the 
Council’s response to the ‘Decarbonising Transport’ report recently published by the 
Department for Transport (DfT). Members requested that the working group also 
considers partnership work with the West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) at 
a future meeting.  
 
The Chief Officer advised Members that meetings of the Biodiversity and Food 
Production working group and the Planning, Buildings and Energy working group, 
will resume in September 2020. 
 
9 Setting the Scene - Environmental Impact of Covid-19  
The Chief Officer for Sustainable Energy and Air Quality (Polly Cook), and the Head 
of Economic Policy (Fiona Bolam), delivered a PowerPoint presentation that set out 
some of the environmental impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic at a national and local 
level. Some of the key trends were highlighted as follows: 
 

 Fuel sales have decreased nationally between March and May 2020, which is 
a trend mirrored locally. The pandemic also provided an opportunity to provide 
key Council services using the electric fleet of vehicles, further reducing the 
Council’s fuel usage. 

 Prior to ‘lockdown’ in February 2020, the average concentration of NO2 ug/m3 
had begun to decrease and this trend has continued throughout the 
‘lockdown’ period. 

Page 6

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0qTBsuCBMdQ&feature=youtu.be
https://aboutleeds.blog/2020/05/28/we-can-build-a-more-sustainable-leeds-after-covid-19-heres-how/


Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd September, 2020 

 

 Sharp drops in two way 24 hour traffic at the beginning of lockdown, which 
began to increase towards the end of May 2020 but remain significantly lower 
than levels in 2019.  

 Reduction in UK electricity demand of between 12% and 21%, with a slight 
increase in domestic consumption. 

 No coal has been burnt for electricity in the UK since 9th April 2020, with 
renewables delivering around half of all energy generation. 

 The pandemic has served to speed up trends that were already evident in the 
economy, highlighting the need to adapt ways of working to recover and 
providing an opportunity for green recovery. 

 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the presentation be noted. 
 
10 Green Recovery  
 
The Chief Officer for Sustainable Energy and Air Quality (Polly Cook), and the Head 
of Economic Policy (Fiona Bolam), delivered a PowerPoint presentation that sets out 
the Council’s plans for green economic recovery in Leeds, following the outbreak of 
Covid-19. Necessary considerations and key opportunities were highlighted as 
follows: 
 

 Lessons learned from the global financial crisis in 2009, including avoiding 
carbon-intensive investments which would ‘lock-in’ future climate change, as 
well as the creation of ‘any jobs’, which then fail to address poor productivity 
and leads to increasing inequality.  

 The vulnerability of Yorkshire to the risks of an unjust transition with a high 
concentration of foundation industries, but also an opportunity in that 11.3% of 
workers have skills that match future jobs, which is higher than the national 
average. 

 Environment and carbon reduction are key focuses within the economic 
recovery plan for West Yorkshire, and will also be central to the Leeds 
economic recovery approach, in line with the Council’s three pillars as set out 
in the Best Council Plan – Inclusive Growth, Health and Wellbeing, and 
Tackling the Climate Emergency. 

 Plans to build on the investment priorities put forward by the Committee on 
Climate Change – low carbon retrofits, energy systems, tree planting 
schemes, active travel initiatives, and moving towards a circular economy. 

 The Local Government Association (LGA) have predicted that demand for 
‘green jobs’ will accelerate massively across the North of England, with Leeds 
likely to be among the strongest cities in the UK in creating jobs to support 
greener industries.  

 The wider opportunities for change as a result of the pandemic, including the 
move towards digitalisation, remote working and shift in transport patterns.  

 
Members discussed a number of matters, including: 
 

 Clean Air Charging Zone (CAZ). In response to a query, Members were 
advised that delays to implementation are due to ongoing discussions with the 
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) around the limits 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd September, 2020 

 

and modelling. Related to this, Members were advised that all eligible and 
approved grant applicants will receive funding despite the delay. 

 Roll-out of full fibre. With the shift towards working from home, Members 
noted the importance of fast and secure broadband. Members were advised 
that the schedule for the roll-out of full fibre would be reported back at future 
meeting.  

 Supporting retail. Members sought more information on the steps taken to 
support high-street retail, and were advised that work is underway to explore 
an app based solution to give confidence to shoppers visiting the city centre 
by providing data on busy areas and available parking.  

 The role of planning and supporting change in the building sector. Members 
highlighted the necessity of engaging with the building sector, and 
encouraging investment into sustainable practice and materials. Chair noted 
his intention to write the Secretary of State on behalf of the Committee to seek 
further support to drive change locally. 

 Devolution. Members were advised that the West Yorkshire devolution deal is 
likely to provide further opportunities for innovation. The Chair suggested that 
a collective response of the Committee to the ongoing consultation on 
devolution be submitted. 

 
RESOLVED –  
 

a) That the Chair writes to the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government to seek clarity and support on the future role of local 
authority planning and building regulations. 

b) That the Committee respond to the West Yorkshire Devolution consultation. 
c) That the contents of the presentation, along with Members comments, be 

noted.  
 
11 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 
The next meeting will take place on Tuesday 22 September 2020 at 3:30 p.m. 

Page 8



Report author: Harriet Speight  

Tel: 0113 37 89954 

Report of the Head of Democratic Services 

Report to Climate Emergency Advisory Committee 

Date: 22 September 2020 

Subject: Climate Action Fund – Community Projects in Leeds 

Are specific electoral wards affected?   Yes  No 

If yes, name(s) of ward(s):  

Has consultation been carried out?   Yes  No 

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?  

 Yes  No 

Will the decision be open for call-in?   Yes  No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes  No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:  

Appendix number:  

 

1. Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce a presentation to be delivered by 
representatives from a partnership of local organisations who have been successful 
in their bid for funding from the £2.5m National Lottery Climate Action Fund. 

2. Main issues 

2.1 Representatives from Our Future Leeds will be in attendance to provide an 
overview of community led projects across Leeds to tackle the climate emergency. 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 The Climate Emergency Advisory Committee is asked to note the contents of the 
presentation. 

4. Background documents1  

4.1 None. 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they 
contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include published works. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Report author: Harriet Speight  

Tel: 0113 37 89954 

Report of the Head of Democratic Services 

Report to Climate Emergency Advisory Committee 

Date: 22 September 2020 

Subject: Sustainable Food Systems 

Are specific electoral wards affected?   Yes  No 

If yes, name(s) of ward(s):  

Has consultation been carried out?   Yes  No 

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?  

 Yes  No 

Will the decision be open for call-in?   Yes  No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes  No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:  

Appendix number:  

 

1. Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce a presentation to be delivered by 
representatives from UKRI and the Global Food and Environment Institute setting 
out the action to be taken to develop a climate resilient food system in Leeds that 
promotes health, sustainability and food security. 

2. Main issues 

2.1 In partnership with Leeds City Council, UKRI and the Global Food and Environment 
Institute have held two workshops to date focused on identifying the drivers that 
could shape the future of the Leeds Food System, and developing a policy 
brief with a number of recommendations for future practice.  

2.2 Representatives from the research partnership will be in attendance at the meeting 
to deliver a presentation.  

3. Recommendations 

3.1 The Climate Emergency Advisory Committee is asked to note the contents of the 
presentation. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 10



4. Background documents1  

4.1 None. 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they 
contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include published works. 

Page 12


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	9 Climate Action Fund - Community Projects in Leeds
	10 Sustainable Food Systems

